ORIENTATION TO WORLD FOR JESUS AND JOEL'S ARMY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Subject/Topic	Page
Introduction	3
What is World for Jesus (WFJ)?	3
Is There Hope for America?	4
How can the Gathering of the Eagles effect change in our Nation?	5
What is Joel's Army?	7
Is Joel's Army for people who live in other nations of the earth?	7
Why is Israel so important?	8
What are prayer shields?	9
How does Joel's Army function?	10
What is a PC?	11
What is servant leadership?	11
Can you give me the expectations of JA Prayer Cell Leaders?	12
Shall I apply as a Joel's Army Prayer Cell Leader PCL or PCM?	12
What are the expectations of a Prayer Cell Member (PCM)?	13
What is a Joel's Army Field Kit?	13
How could I use the JA Field Kit?	13
What does it mean to pray for the 7 R's?	14
How can we rebuild the ruins in faith?	17
Conclusion	19
Recommended Resources on the World for Jesus Website	21

Rev. 11.10.15

ORIENTATION TO WORLD FOR JESUS AND JOEL'S ARMY

America needs intercessors standing together in prayer and intercession like never before to save and preserve our country. The Lord is not finished with America, but America is about to travel through some difficult waters as the Lord is shifting this nation back to Himself. Your intercession is crucial to helping pull this nation through in this time of crisis. Thank you for joining with us and getting involved as we seek the Lord for our nation.

Introduction

This orientation manual has been developed to help all of our intercessors to be better acquainted with World for Jesus and Joel's Army. Some of you are very familiar with World for Jesus because you have been in relationship with us for a long, long time. Others are fairly acquainted because you have been with us for a few years. Then there are others who are brand new friends to World for Jesus. This orientation manual is to help you get to know us.

What is World for Jesus (WFJ)?

Nita Johnson is the president and founder of the World For Jesus Ministries, Inc., a multifaceted prophetic intercessory ministry, established to reach the world with the love of Jesus.

Our mission's outreach includes:

International evangelistic meetings

Intercontinental teaching meetings/gatherings & pastors conferences

Supporting ministers in the five-fold ministry pastors in third world countries to enable them to fulfill their God given vision

Building orphanages in third world countries

Supporting the work of orphanages in third world countries

Developing pastoral & discipleship training programs in third world countries

Writing and publishing Christian books and literature for free worldwide distribution

Messages CD production and free distribution worldwide

Feeding the hungry and clothing the poor

We Believe:

The Bible is the inspired, infallible and authoritative Word of God. We believe that there is one God, eternally existent in three persons: God the Father, God the Son and God the Holy Spirit. We believe in the deity of our Lord Jesus Christ, in His virgin birth, in His sinless life, in His miracles, in His vicarious and atoning death, in His bodily resurrection, in His ascension to the right hand of the Father and His personal future return to this earth in power and glory to rule over the nations. We believe that the only means of being cleansed from sin is through repentance and faith in the precious blood of Christ. We

believe that regeneration by the Holy Spirit is absolutely essential for personal salvation. We believe that the redemptive work of Christ on the cross provides healing of the human body in answer to believing prayer. We believe in the Spirit-filled life by whose indwelling the Christian is given the power to live a victorious and effective life. We believe in the resurrection of both the saved, and the lost, the one to everlasting life and the other to everlasting damnation.

National Outreach for Healing of America: Gathering of the Eagles

We are in the process of spearheading a movement to bring ministers and intercessors together in a collective interdenominational body in order to spend time seeking the face of the Lord. The purpose is to bring America into national repentance and promote unity within the body in preparation to receive the coming glory as a National Church. Further, we are hoping to see city fathers, state fathers, and national fathers rise up for the care of the church locally as well as nationally. These fathers will have the heart of Paul to shepherd as the Chief Shepherd would.

Is there Hope for America?

Yes, absolutely! God has not forsaken us. He deeply loves our nation, and He yearns to heal and bless America.

In a vision Nita "saw two hands take a wet American flag, put it through an old wringer type washing machine. The hands pulled the flag under water, then up through those wringers. When the flag came out the other side, it was very clean." God is going to clean America. He is going to clean what the flag stands for, and He is going to do it with His Glory.

America is in an hour of transition and is about to travel through some difficult waters as the Lord is shifting this nation back to Himself. America will go through a tight place, but even as we go through it, the Lord will be with us as He brings us through to purity. He really does love this nation, and He is fighting for us.

America was created in this period of history for such a time as this. America is called to be a father, a shepherd to the nations to receive, shelter and protect them. America is to be like a tree, a covering of a father's arms over the nations. America has great influence on the nations of the world. Isra'el needs to see America ablaze with His Glory, and Isra'el will turn to Christ. In fact, there are many nations watching America, and they will be able to stand if we stand.

There is a difficult transition time ahead of us. We will not be able to go through in our own strength but will be able to by intercession. It will be a difficult time, but not as hard without intercession. The intercessors are like stars in a dark sky. This is like momentary birth pains before the baby comes. The baby can be born. We can be a nation pruned, refined, defined in Christ, bringing forth pangs for the Kingdom as He transitions us out of the Church Age in to the Kingdom Age.

Rev. 11.10.15

How can the Gathering of the Eagles effect change in our Nation?

God has commissioned WFJM to hold intercessory times called The Gathering of the Eagles - GOEs

America's answer is not in politics! We need the glory of the Lord ~~ and we need revival!

After many months of prayer, the Lord impressed to Nita to establish Gatherings in America. He spoke to her saying: "Bring the leadership of the Church together in one heart to humble themselves before Me, seek My face, and cleanse the land through repentance, and I will make America a dwelling place for My glory." That is what we are now doing.

What it is!

- It is a five-fold ministry. We will also be including intercessors.
- It will be a time set aside to seek the face of the Lord together in worship, prayer, repentance and sharing to ascertain the mind of the Lord. I base this on Joel 2:12 & 13; II Chron.5:13-14 & Acts 13:2; 15:28.
- We desire to see the glory of God rest upon America. Therefore we are coming together as a corporate leadership body to discover from Him what He requires from the Church in America in exchange for allowing us to be a dwelling place for His glory.

What it is not!

- It is not a traditional conference.
- There will be no guest speakers.
- We will have no agenda.
- This is not a denominational gathering. We desire that ministries from all Christian denominations join together as one man.

What we will see accomplished through obedience!

Healing of the American Church!

We have all desired to see a healthy body of believers in America, and have undertaken in many ways to bring this about. While the greatest health that will come to the Church will come in the midst of major national revival, we can bring a new level of health in repentance and the true spirit of worship such as Daniel engaged in.

Healing of America!

The Lord has a problem with America. We are guilty of the shedding of innocent blood including persecution of race, abortion and many other ways. We as a Church can repent for these atrocities and once again see the favor of the Lord in our nation.

Rev. 11.10.15

• Hearing the Lord's voice corporately.

The Lord wants to bring the body into a new level of relationship by teaching us how to come together and learn how to hear His voice as a body of leaders.

Worship

Higher worship is always an earmark of true revival. He will prepare us for this in these Gatherings. Further, Nita learned from Elisha's example many years ago, that true worship opens the way for the Word of the Lord! II Kings 3:15. We will see that established on a corporate level in these Gatherings.

• Unity

America will never see revival in the magnitude in which we desire it until we allow the Lord to knit us together in humility and unity. He will begin to do this by His own Spirit in these Gatherings.

Fathers

Paul said you have many teachers, but you have not many Fathers. Malachi promised that the day would come when an anointing would be poured out to turn the hearts of the Fathers to the sons, and the sons to the Fathers. The Lord told Nita that as we are obedient in these Gatherings, He will make known the Fathers of the body, Fathers with hearts like Paul of old. He will reveal the Fathers over the cities, states, regions and the nation, as we seek His face with a pure heart.

Revival

After three hours of intense intercession the night that the Lord commissioned Nita to establish the Gatherings in America, He told her that if we would be obedient to all that He tells us in these Gatherings and thereby cleanse the land of the guilt of innocent blood, He would give us the revival for which we hunger.

A resting place for His glory!

When the glory of the Lord rested upon the Ark, Israel prospered. The Lord's glory has not rested upon America in that way in many generations. The reason for His conspicuous absence is that the Nation and the Church has brought shame upon His name.

Nevertheless, He longs to return to us. He spoke to Nita very clearly that if we would obey Him in this, He would use these Gatherings to prepare us to once again be a dwelling place for His glory.

As we search the Scriptures we learn that wherever we see the glory of God visit seeking men, we see men coming together in one heart to seek His face and prepare for His glory. (II Chron. 5:12-14; Acts chapter 2) We believe that the days are quickly fading in which we will continue to see the sort of 'one-man shows', with everyone doing what is right in his own eyes. It is time for the corporate body to rise up as the 'one man' to gain the inheritance of God's glory in righteousness, holiness, unity and preferring one another in the bond of love.

How can a Nation be saved if there are no tears? How can a Nation weep if there is no prophetic voice warning it of the coming perils of continued apathy? How can the voice be heard if there is no vision? How can the vision be carried if there is no intercessor? We are longing for a great outpouring of God's glory from coast to coast and through the Islands

of Hawaii and Alaska, not on one Church or denomination, but on the corporate body. Please join with us to seek God's face and prepare for His coming presence.

What is Joel's Army?

We have been calling intercessors together to pray and fight for America for over a decade. During this time we have seen countless answers to prayer, causing us to rejoice in the goodness of God day after day! Each gracious response on His part has encouraged us to believe ever more firmly that Jesus delights in His mission to save America. While we recognize that there are many streams of intercessors, each doing their individual parts to help bring stability to a nation in peril, we also realize that God has called us to come along side and add another stream, to do a great and much-needed work.

Until 2012 the main focus at World for Jesus Ministries had been the Gathering of the Eagles (GOEs). At the beginning of 2012 we added training meetings in which we teach intercessors how to pray for our nation and be a part of the army that God is using to save America. We had been doing all we could do in the GOEs, but we needed you. God needed an army, and He would fashion that army after the book of Joel. He would anoint you to become pillars in the land. The pillars being placed over America by the hand of God.

This army will have the anointing that is described in the book of Joel. If the soldiers remain humble, turning with all their hearts toward the Lord with fasting and weeping, then the "broken fellowship" will be restored and Joel's Army, the name the Lord gave Nita for this prayer force, will march forth in victory, wresting America from the hands of those who seek to destroy her.

We encourage you to read the book of Joel. God had a prophetic reason why you had to be called Joel's Army. In Joel you will find your significance and why you had to be called Joel's Army. Read it until the Lord just resonates your assignment, your commission deep within your heart. There is nothing like eating the scroll as Ezekiel did until the vision is planted deep inside you. Nothing then will turn you.

Is Joel's Army for people who live in other nations of the earth?

America's current political climate is a message to the nations. God is dismantling mankind's efforts at self-governing so He can do something new, vast and wonderful. The nations that want truth will ride the wave of His revolution. We, the true Church, will find our place in Him and among the nations. World politics are about to go into upheaval. However, in the end, those nations that turn to Christ will rise to the top like cream. The nations are in a perilous place therefore, the training is not limited to America; we need to train intercessors throughout the world to fight through effective prayers for their nation.

Our desire is to see this work fulfilled in every nation, thus relieving the burden of God's judgment and preparing the way for His favor and subsequent blessings. The Church can

never again function as it has in the past. The priesthood must rise to the occasion; it has to change. May you stir your nation to prayer that it might fulfill its national destiny.

Joel's Army is being raised up simultaneously in the United States and Internationally. JA is already operating in many nations of the earth. We have PCs in Europe, Africa, Asia, Australia, the Philippines, and Canada.

Why is Isra'el so important?

Messiah cares about every living soul. He knows better than anyone just how bad hell is. His heart convulses with pain at the idea of anyone spending eternity in that place. His love for everyone is such that the Father sent the Son to die for each and every living being. To think that someone would spend eternity in hell for which Messiah died further adds to the Father's suffering as well. Nita said, "Among those for whom Messiah died are my people -- the Jewish populace worldwide.

Every day the international Jewish community, and now Isra'el, exists it is the evidence of the faithfulness of Adonai's (The LORD'S) covenant. Since the Father decreed it a Nation, the nations of the world have felt that Israel and its people, the Jewish families of the earth, have been a burdensome stone. Questions such as: "What are we going to do with Israel? or What to do about the Jew?", are age old questions. The Father would have blessed the nations of the world through Abraham's seed, but we wouldn't hear of it. But, Adonai will never forsake His Jewish people. If Adonai were to forsake Israel, it would cause me to question His faithfulness to His Church. However as we have seen down through the ages, Adonai is true and every man a liar. Though as humans we are unfaithful, He is faithful still. Who can question the wisdom of our glorious heavenly Father?"

We are in a serious time period when Israel is becoming a particularly burdensome stone, especially to the nations around her. However to those who love her, she is the passion of our hearts and the joy of our song.

He gave me (Nita) a vision. I saw James the natural brother of Messiah. His knees looked like the knees of an elephant. They were calloused, even swollen and peeling from the heat of the irritation of the swelling. I hurt, as I gazed upon him. I remembered how I had once read in Church history how James spent so much time on his knees praying for Israel that his knees looked like the knees of an elephant. Now I was seeing them for myself, and really they were much worse than even I had imagined. I wondered at the hours He must have spent every day on his knees to make them look like the picture I had just seen. Now Messiah was inviting me to follow the lead of James and begin this intense form of intercession.

Since 1948, Israel has been back on the front burner as the trigger for global events. Moreover, this reality will be highly escalated from this point on. The Church does not yet realize the importance of what the Lord has assigned to Israel. In her awakening, it will be as if the world has received life back from the dead. Every time the Lord so much as breathes on anything concerning Israel, it will somehow shake the world and the Church.

Like a sleeping giant rising from centuries of slumber the Jewish people will prove to be a Nation to be reckoned with; for, God has His eyes and His heart set upon them to do them good in the end. The world is now in the throes of birth-pains as we enter into the time of birthing the new millennium. God's dealings with Israel are the barometer meant to keep us alert as to the progress the Kingdom of God is making.

I (Nita) am often asked why I recommend that Jewish people return to the homeland especially now with things in turmoil such as they are. My response is always the same. Because it is only there that many will find Messiah. Nowhere on earth will there be such an outpouring of grace to open the blind eyes of Jewish hearts than right there in Israel, for the Lord has ordained it to be thus. He said in His word that Jew and Gentile both would know that He was Adonai when He brought captive Israel home once again from the place of their dispersion. When would the Jew know that Yeshua was indeed Adonai come in the flesh? When He brought them home from out of the Nations of the world. Therefore, it is at home that their blind eyes will be opened to know the truth, hence the great awakening.

The Reformation, The dethroning of ancient demonic monarchs, and the transfer of the government to the house of David, will ignite cataclysmic events world-wide. Keep your eyes and prayers steadfastly on Israel, for "the days of Noah" hence the days of Elijah are here. In addition, pray for the world as the Lord's judgments and grace continue to flow preparing the way for His glory.

What are prayer shields?

Recently, the Lord spoke to Nita in a marvelous vision that we must raise up the shields of the earth.

The princes and nobles of the people are gathered together, a [united] people for the God of Abraham for the shields of the earth belong to God. Psalms 47:9 AMP

These shields looked like standards, established by God, and they were peppering the landscape and bringing stability to the earth. By way of interpretation, these standards or shields represent core prayer groups of various sizes that are trained to "stand in the gap" for the Church and the nation. By way of application, we are looking for mature Christians who believe in the power of prayer and want to start and facilitate these groups, as well as Churches that want to sponsor and watch over one of these special prayer ministries within their Church. Essentially, we are looking for those who want to join Joel's Army.

This is a time-sensitive issue; indeed time is of the essence. America is about to travel through some difficult waters, and so we need intercessors standing together to preserve our country through this transition time. Prayerfully consider joining the ranks of others who are ably standing in the gap, as recorded in Ezekiel 22:30 so long ago,

And I sought for a man among them that should make up the hedge, and stand in the gap before me for the land, that I should not destroy it.

Our prayer is that each of you will answer this call positively, and not as Ezekiel prophesied in 13:5,

Ye have not gone up into the gaps, neither made up the hedge for the house of Israel to stand in the battle in the day of the LORD.

Friends, we must not be found wanting in this area. As the Church of the Living God, we must take our stand for His honor and our safety; in His name we shall prevail!

The pebble of prayer is about to be thrown, and the ripple of the power of God is about to follow, which will start in America and expand out across the globe. Are you ready to see a move of God unlike anything you have ever witnessed? Dear friends, do you want to be among those who cause the ripple? If so, it is high time to have a heart-to-heart talk with God. Then ask yourself, "Do I want to be a part of this Army? Is it my desire to affect pivotal changes in this nation? Am I ready to be among the pebbles that start the ripple?

How does Joel's Army function?

The true beauty of Joel's Army is this: you can effect change in the spirit realm that will ultimately be realized in the natural realm. JA is a many intercessor network whose purpose is to bring America through the difficult times ahead by tearing down negative antichrist strongholds and planting Christ fearing strongholds. The intercessors of Joel's Army intercede for the value plan of God that needs to be built up to take up the vacuum as the antichrist system is taken down.

Nita saw shields lighted up and covering the landscape all across the nation, going down deep into the bedrock and literally stabilizing the earth. There were shields covering every state of the nation. These represented Prayer Cells (PC) led by well-trained Prayer Cell Leaders (PCL) who were guiding Prayer Cell Members (PCM) in weekly intercessory prayer. World for Jesus Ministries is raising up Joel's Army of intercessors who faithfully pray the weekly Prayer Points Nita receives from the Lord.

Every week, Nita seeks the Lord for His Heart. What is it He wants the intercessors praying about this week? What the Lord gives to Nita are called the "prayer points" for that week. Once Nita has the prayer points, they are emailed to every PCL and PCM in JA.

These prayer points are prayed many times throughout the week in corporate prayer times.

- Sunday night intercessory call
- Wednesday, Thursday, and Friday intercessory calls
- In the prayer cells (PC) that are meeting weekly (some daily) across the nations of the earth

Access numbers to these calls are sent to you when you become a member of JA. There is also more information on the WFJM website, www.worldforjesus.org

Each week Nita seeks the Lord for what is on His Heart because this way we know that we are praying His Will into the earth's situations. The prayer points that we pray come out of that time.

For well over a decade we have seen and experienced the direct results of prayers that have hit their mark, disrupting the plans of those who seek to destroy and dismantle the nations. Yes, it is only the prayers of the saints that will carry our nations through the difficult times coming upon the earth.

What is a PC?

A Prayer Cell (PC) is a group of like-minded intercessors with a passion to pray for God's will to be done in America. They gather once a week (or more if you so desire) in a home or church with others who also desire to bring God's will for Revival to our nation through our prayers. If just one or two will commit to start a PC, (Jesus in their midst) asking the Lord to bring increase then He may reveal others who are also called to this powerful ministry of intercession. That's the start of a PC. If the PC is begun in a church, be sure to first obtain the pastor's approval, and welcome him to check us out (on the website) and even to lead the local JA PC.

If geographical proximity is a problem, JA has many phone PC's that link together distant members in places where JA is still growing. Perhaps you know of people of prayer who would commit at least one hour a week to pray together on the phone. This fits into a busy schedule, and it provides eternal value. We can assist you in obtaining a free conference line for that purpose, etc.

Our prayer cells are led by a PCL, a prayer cell leader. This is part of the application process. At the very beginning of the application, the applicant selects whether he/she is applying to be a PCL or a PCM (prayer cell member). For those selecting to become PCMs, the WFJM Fresno office networks and connects you to a prayer cell.

As mentioned in the above topic, WFJM supplies you with weekly Prayer Points over which to pray. If you feel unsure you can learn by joining our leadership led weekly corporate prayer calls, and also by attending GOE's in various cities across the nation, etc.

What is servant leadership?

World for Jesus believes in leading by serving. Our Lord and Savior, Yeshua, is the perfect model of servant leadership. He led by example.

A Servant Leader:

- Serves with humility
- Values, honors, and respects each other creating an atmosphere of trust

- Focuses on others and teamwork (Not "How will this benefit me?")
- Encourages "Let's do it" "You can do this"
- Listens intently and receptively to what is being said
- Develops others bringing them into maturity
- Thinks beyond the realities of today

Can you give me the expectations of JA Prayer Cell Leaders?

Prayer Cell Leader Expectations

- Grow in humility and maturity as an intercessor of our Lord
- Respectfully receive instruction from the WFJ Leadership
- Develop an effective prayer cell within 60 days of PCL approval
- Demonstrate servant leadership
- Attend JA PCL training sessions/website playback, convenient to your schedule
- Maximize use of all training materials to include the JA field kit, our gift to each applicant
- Provide a quarterly PCL report, updating PC growth/changes
- With training provided by JA leadership, conduct interviews and mentoring of their PCM's
- Provide PC data to JA as needed

Shall I apply as a Joel's Army Prayer Cell Leader (PCL), or a Prayer Cell Member (PCM)?

If you have applied to become a Prayer Cell Leader (PCL), yet your interviewer notes that you are so new to WFJM or to Nita's Joel's Army vision, he or she might encourage you to first spend some time praying with an established cell as a participating member (PCM). Prayer Cell Leaders must be well-equipped to succeed in helping others learn how and what we pray over, and such equipping can take some time.

Our direction and subjects for prayer might be slightly different from those of other excellent prayer ministries with which the applicant has previously been familiar. If you have never attended a *Gathering of the Eagles* nor regularly joined our weekly leadership led and interactive prayer calls for a season, we may ask you to submit to the wisdom of your interviewer while you first spend time praying with us and learning from others in a JA PC before becoming a PCL leader.

In such cases, it is our JA policy for the PCL applicant to pray as a regular member of an established JA PC for a minimum of 6 months, after which time a brief re-interview will be scheduled and conducted. If at that time the interviewer feels that the applicant is ready

to lead a JA PC, he will release the member to start his own PC as its leader (PCL). Ongoing live, twice monthly PCL training calls are offered to all Joel's Army Prayer Cell Leaders.

What are the expectations of a Prayer Cell Member (PCM)?

- Regularly attend and take part in a JA Prayer Cell
- Demonstrate the servant heart of our Lord
- Respectfully receive instruction from the WFJ Leadership, including the assigned PCL
- Develop and grow in humility and maturity as an intercessor of our Lord

What is a Joel's Army Field Kit?

Each person who joins Joel's Army receives a Joel's Army field kit. In the military, a field kit is issued to help a soldier be better equipped to accomplish the mission to which he or she is assigned.

In Joel's Army we want the intercessors to be as equipped as possible for the mission assigned to us. Because of this Nita and WFJM desire to sew into the intercessors to help them develop and mature. This is the purpose for the field kit.

Contained in the field kit are the following items:

- 1. Intercession for Beginners a 6 CD set taught by Nita
- 2. Advanced Prayer a 2nd CD set taught by Nita
- 3. Save America Campaign 3 CDs (1st CD is PDF + 2CDs of Nita teaching)
- 4. The Overcoming Life Through Prayer A book by Nita
- 5. The Melchizedek Priesthood A book by Nita

How could I use the JA Field Kit?

Also contained in this kit is a Topical Matrix. This matrix is designed by topics and referenced to the above CDs and books. For example, if you wanted to teach or learn about humility, the matrix points out which CDs discuss this topic and also which of the two books discuss humility and the page numbers where you will find it.

The teachings in these CDs and books are worth their weight in gold with Nita pouring into intercessors by teaching and by sharing many of her own experiences. These teachings are invaluable, addressing the needs for growth that we, as intercessors, have. You will benefit personally and those in your prayer cell will too.

Many prayer groups are using this material for discussion among themselves, as well as with others. Some groups discuss one of the books or parts of the book or material learned from the CDs. If you are a PCL, the matrix that comes with the kit really guides you to material that your prayer cell may need. It can help you in answering any questions brought to you by people in your cell or by others you are speaking with.

What does it mean to pray for the 7 R's?

The seven R's – Repentance, Revival, Revolution, Reformation, Reclamation, Revelation, Reconciliation – are what, through prayer, we all are birthing into this nation. We are birthing God's forgiveness into this nation each time we repent and birthing His Restoration. He is re-constituting this nation. We must pray constantly for The Constitution - regularly, every day - because that is what those who are trying to destroy America are tearing apart.

The battle is intense, but we will see the fullness of revival flowing across this nation. God is going to release, in this hour, a level of Jubilee anointing, Isaiah 61, to take the Church out of bondage and, literally, into its maturity.

Repentance

- 1. Repentance is one way the Lord heals a land
- 2. Identificational Repentance
 - Means to repent for sins of forefathers as though they were our sins
 - Daniel 9:3-21
 - According to Ezekiel 14:14 Daniel was one of the 3 most righteous men in the earth yet here he sits at the feet of the Father repenting for the sins of his forefathers
 - Daniel prays as though they were his own sins
 - That is an example of identificational repentance
 - The Bible carries the concept of identificational repentance from the beginning clear up to the death of Christ
 - Christ, bearing the ultimate priestly ministry of identificational repentance on behalf of all men
 - And it is still a value in the eyes of God today
 - This repentance undoes the legal hold that allows the enemy to operate
 - As we come and bow down before Him in repentance and return to intercede in righteousness, He will cleanse us and lift us up and make us a nation respected throughout the earth.

Rev. 11.10.15

Revival

- 1. Weeping is not the healing of America or any nation
- 2. Weeping and repentance builds a pathway for God to come in spirit of revival
- 3. Revival is what heals the nation
 - God's mercy is so great that He pours out that part of Himself to heal a nation that really does not deserve it
- 4. Revival will awaken this nation
 - We will see a harvest unlike any we have ever seen
 - This revival will work in conjunction with God's Revolution
- 5. He wants to honor the sacrifice of the martyrs throughout history with revival.
 - It is His gift to them as well as to us.

Revolution

- 1. This will be a divine revolution
 - It is not going to stop until it fulfills God's purpose.
 - This revolution is going to be as complete as it was in days of Washington.
 - Look at the grace of freedom that was promised to all Americans
 - Look at the beauty of the Constitution and government that was established
 - God is sending this revolution into the heart of the Church
 - He is also sending this revolution into the secular arena
- 2. Pray He will prepare us to recognize and welcome His Revolution.
 - And pray His Spirit will make known and accomplish His will as it spreads.
 - According to many visions Nita has had, the end is a wonderful thing
 - It will positively touch the Church, the Nation, and the Nations of the world before it is over.

Reformation

- 1. Reformation brings change.
- 2. Revival cannot do what Reformation does.
- 3. Revival affects many things in a magnificent way and will get people's attention.

- 4. But to change the very core of human existence, Reformation is necessary.
- 5. The result of this Reformation will be a tremendous change and shift in the world.
 - We pray for Reformation and Revival to break the powers of darkness that cannot be broken by any other means
 - And that through this breaking, He will make us holy and pleasing in His sight.
- 6. More importantly Reformation will bring forth the Bride of Christ.
- 7. It brings the release of Melchizedek Priesthood and Mighty Men of Valor.
- 8. The Reformation and the Jubilee anointing will transform the Church of Christ.
 - The Jubilee anointing has the capacity to change you and me in a moment from a baby Christian into an adult son
 - It can bring us into the full stature of Christ living, thinking, breathing, and being in Christ.
 - It is what we saw in Him when He walked on this earth.
 - The Jubilee anointing will bridge the chasm helping the Body get from baby to adult son.
- 9. Nita asked the Lord what brought Him the greatest pleasure? This was His answer:
 - "The day the Father releases the Jubilee anointing as depicted in Isaiah 61 because that is what is going to bring My Church into Ephesians 4:12.13.

Reclamation

- 1. America (and the world) needs Christ to reclaim her from the very foundation upwards.
 - We need Him to rebuild the ancient ruins and restore the streets of righteousness for our Nation to travel on
 - We pray for Him to give us a willing heart of intercession and travail for this invaluable reclamation of the Nation.
 - Every nation needs His reclamation power to restructure the infrastructure of the Nation.
- 2. God is reclaiming the land.
 - The Lord spoke to me (Nita) very powerfully and told me that the land of America is the American Church's heritage, a gift of love from above.
 - We need to see it as our heritage and seek to protect it as such.

- He wants us to have the same love for America that He does.
- The reason America is in the trouble she is in now is because the Church has not kept the land in their hearts as a heritage from the Lord thus watching over it in righteousness.
- When the Church returns to the nurture of this nation in righteousness America will return to the proper Fatherhood role it has been called to among the nations of the world.
- It is not in the Father's heart to dispossess the First Nations people but to bring the Kingdom to their needy hearts, give the nation as a whole to His Church, which would include the born again First Nations People.
- 3. We must learn to take the dominion in love today by standing for righteousness.

Revelation

- 1. God is going to reveal The Kingdom.
 - Pray for revelation to come to the Church that she might arise in the superior excellence of His Majesty and His might.
- 2. We pray for the Revelation of Jesus Christ yet to come. We know in part, but there is a greater knowing that has been ordained for this time
 - Pray He will prepare His Church to be able and ready to receive and embrace His Revelation
 - We pray that He will reveal Himself to us.

Reconciliation

- 1. We must do our part to stand in the righteousness of God for the nation.
- 2. Pray for healing of those who have suffered as a result of their heritage.
- 3. Pray for deep healing so they can become testimonies and overcomers in Him.
- 4. Pray we'll be one nation under God, indivisible with liberty and justice for all.

How can we rebuild the ruins in faith?

As a ministry, World for Jesus has spent 15 years dismantling the enemy's plans through repentance, tearing down strongholds as The Lord has directed. The Lord knows how to bring us thru and into our ordained destiny as a nation. America is like a child who has a great destiny, but she has not learned how to keep her flesh under control in order to obtain that destiny. We have a good and loving Father who is saying, "I have a child (America) who has all the qualities to be great so I am going to help her so she can fulfill her destiny."

The Father has spoken His Heart for America. He said, "I have given America to be free!" The Father has given America to the Church, but we must take it and reign in it and maintain it. We are here in this time and season to stand in the gap. We, must do our part to see this nation stand in the righteousness of God - "one nation, under God." He has instructed us: "You are to rebuild the ruins in faith."

And your ancient ruins shall be rebuilt: you shall raise up the foundations of [buildings that have laid waste for] many generations: and you shall be called the repairer of the breach, the restorer of streets to dwell in.

Isaiah 58:12 AMP

Our job is to rebuild - recreating, rebuilding this nation in faith. He is speaking: "Rebuild! Rebuild! Prepare ye the way of The Lord. Make the way straight for His Glorious Reign!"

...Prepare in the wilderness the way of the LORD – clear away the obstacles – make straight and smooth in the desert a highway for our God!

Every valley shall be lifted and filled up, and every mountain and hill shall be made low; and the crooked and uneven shall be made straight and level, and the rough places a plain. And the glory – majesty and splendor – of the LORD shall be revealed.

Isaiah 40:3-5a AMP

He spoke to Nita and told her, "I will help you rebuild if you will let me." So under His Leadership, we pray, we proclaim, we decree, we declare until His Glory comes, and churches on fire are filling this land, until the righteous and upright are filling the government offices, until our children are safe in the educational structure of this land, until Jesus is Lord of this nation.

(Under the Joel's Army Tab on www.worldforjesus.org are Declarations and Proclamations to speak over the Nation)

CONCLUSION

God Bless America

By Nita Johnson



George Washington, a man of God! Was he, or wasn't he? All I know was that I was allowed to see him in heaven. Three times the enemy tried to take his life unsuccessfully. He was created by God to help lead a nation into foundational greatness. Was he a great military genius? I don't know. If you search the records they will leave you in doubt. However, he was God's man and the Lord heard his prayers for America.

He loved our Nation enough to leave home and family and to endure unspeakable conditions in order to save America. In his day President Washington understood the criticalness of the hour for our nation, and it was that understanding which incited his valor.

Today few actually realize just how critical things are for America, and fewer yet seem to realize how important their prayers are if we are to completely win this battle. Mr. Washington probably did not fully understand the significance of his prayers, nor could he comprehend his personal importance in the field of battle when the losses were always so great. However, he did understand that he must not quit. He did understand that America needed everyone who would to stand as much as they could in the faith that God would save America from all her enemies. He realized that many men had fought and died, and many lived to testify of the valor required to build a future for this Nation.

He also understood that whether or not he considered himself worthy of God's attention, he knew he received it when he prayed. He lived because he prayed. Now we live in a blessed Country because he prayed. Moreover, the nation will continue to live because we pray.

The Lord God Almighty looks to us to pray on our knees and weep and travail until we birth Christian liberty once again. He waits and He listens for those who will help Him save this nation once again. You my friends give what you can to bring God's vision to pass. I want to encourage you that prayer can and will do what nothing else in the world can do. We cannot find any force or power greater than God, and His power is attainable... accessible only through prayer. A man on his knees praying in faith and holy separation is of more value than one-hundred-thousand soldiers. Military might alone, without a praying man, offers little help for protecting a nation. A praying man who has paid the price to gain absolute favor with the throne can turn defeat into victory. Be encouraged and do not give up! Victory will come if we refuse to stop.

If you do not currently flow in travail, groaning prayer, weeping prayer and the like, ask God to give it to you if you would like such a gift. He will do it as we need it!

Travailing prayer looks, feels and sounds like you are giving birth to a baby, and you are!

Groaning prayer sounds like you have a very bad stomach ache. However, it is not you with the ache when you so engage, but the enemy.

Weeping prayer, well it sounds like you are weeping, and you are! When you finish the enemy will be weeping. When you pray like that you do not have to utter words as the Spirit of the Lord is giving utterance before the throne as you pray.

Pray until God gives you one of these gifts. This avails you of greater authority from His throne.

Please remember to pray for the "6 R's," and that God will break the back of the Illuminati plans.

Bless you and thank-you. Someday soon this nation will thank you!

God bless America so we can bless God!

In His Love,

Nita Johnson

(All of the information in this booklet came from World for Jesus articles and messages.)

RECOMMENDED RESOURCES ON THE WORLD FOR JESUS WEBSITE

Joel's Army Tab

Save the Nations Prospectus

Declarations and Proclamations over the Nation

Prophetic Articles by Nita Johnson

Isra'el Kept By Covenant

As in the Days of Noah

The Melchizedek Reformation and the Coming Revival

Melchizedek Priesthood

God's Plan for the Nation

Our Nation

America the Beautiful

*Books by Nita Johnson

The Overcoming Life Through Prayer

The Melchizedek Priesthood

*CD Series

Intercession for Beginners

Advanced Prayer for Intercessors

^{*}These items are given in the Joel's Army Field Kit.